Borough Council of King’s Lynn & West Norfolk
Report to Panel of Licensing & Appeals Board

Date of Hearing: 21 November 2017
Prepared by: Mr John Gilbraith, Licensing Manager

Application to depart from Licensing Conditions and Procedures in respect
of Private Hire Signage — Mr Jason TAYLOR trading as Barry’s Cars

Introduction

1. Mr Jason Taylor, trading as Barry’s Cars & Minibuses Limited holds Private
Hire Operator Licence number PO0043. This was last renewed on the 7™
September 2016 and expires on the 6" September 2021. Barry’s Cars &
Minibuses Limited currently operates with 13 licensed private hire vehicles.

Private Hire Signage

2. Mr Taylor is requesting that all private hire vehicles operating under Barry’s
Cars and Minibuses Limited be exempt the requirement of Condition 5.2 on the
basis that Barry’s Cars do not deal with the general public. Conditions 5.2 and 5.3
of the Borough Council’s Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Procedures
& Conditions state:

5.2 A sign must be displayed in a prominent position on each front side
door of the vehicle displaying either:

5.2.1 Borough Council logo with the wording ‘Pre-Booked Only
insurance invalid unless booked with an operator’, or

5.2.2 Borough Council logo and specifying the operator name,
telephone number for bookings, with the wording ‘Pre-Booked
Only’

5.3  The sign must be in either of the prescribed formats (see example ‘A’
and ‘B’ below) and must be affixed to the vehicle by a Borough
Council authorised sign maker. Removable signs e.g. magnetic will
not be permitted. The signage is only obtainable via the licensing
team and must be fitted within 14 days of the date the signage is
ready and available with the signage company. Examples of
permitted private hire signage:

Example A

Borough Council of
King’s Lynn &
West Norfolk 1'\E/"}

Pre-Booked Only

INSURANCE INVALID UNLESS
BOOKED WITH OPERATOR




Example B

Borough Council of ;
King’s Lynn &  %fr=53
West Norfolk W .

KING’S LYNN CARS

Pre-Booked Only

Tel: 01553 616200

3. A copy of Mr Taylor's email of the 9" June 2017 requesting the exemption
is attached to this report as Appendix 1.

Background

4, The requirement for private hire signage was introduced as a licensing
condition in 2009 and the following is an extract from the Borough Council’s
Cabinet Report dated the 2™ December 2008:

Private Hire Vehicle Signage. There is currently no requirement for private
hire vehicles to advertise their operator name or that they may be pre-
booked only. It is proposed to introduce a requirement that all private hire
vehicles have prescribed signage on each side of the vehicle, including the
operator name, the wording ‘pre-booked only’ and the operator telephone
number. This would identify the vehicle as private hire, help to avoid
confusion with a taxi and also provide useful information for members of the
public wishing to make a booking.

The requirement for private hire signage was subsequently approved by Full
Council on the 22" January 2009.

Determination

5. Section 48(1) of The Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act
1976 prescribes that a private hire vehicle must be of suitable type, size and
design; in a suitable mechanical condition; safe; comfortable and adequately
insured. In addition, Section 48 (2) provides that:

‘A district council may attach to the grant of a licence under this section
such conditions as they may consider reasonably necessary including,
without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing provisions of this
subsection, conditions requiring or prohibiting the display of signs on or
from the vehicle to which the licence relates.’

6. The panel are requested to consider this report, including any submissions
put forward by Mr Taylor and dispose of the matter by either allowing the request
or rejecting the request.



7. There is no statutory right of appeal to Magistrates’ Court against the
decision of the Council in this matter. Should Mr Taylor wish to challenge the
Council’s decision this may only be achieved by way of judicial review.

John Gilbraith

Licensing Manager
Environmental Health - Licensing
2" November 2017

Appendix

1. Email Mr Taylor 9" June 2017

Background Papers

1. Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976.

2. Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Procedures & Conditions
(January 2017).



Appendix 1 to

Report to Panel of Licensing & Appeals Board

John Gilbraith Re: Barry's Cars & Minibuses Limited

Dated 2" November 2017

From: JTaylor <jtaylor@barryscars.co.uk>
Sent: 09 June 2017 12:47

To: John Gilbraith

Cc: Marie Malt

Subject: RE: Oval Plates *OFFICIAL - *

Good afternoon John

Thanks for your email, | note your comment on why the operator has been granted not to have ovals on
his vehicle.

The reason for us not having the ovals is we don’t deal with the general public, we don’t do private hire
work and haven’t done since September 2011 and wont in the future as | have no desire to do this type of
work.

| understand why the ovals are on private hire vehicle’s doing private hire work and | support this, that
they are on the vehicles for public safety but for us having these on our vehicles is misleading for the
public as they assume we are private hire operators doing private hire work so on that grounds | would say
it’s better for the public we don’t have them which I’'m sure you agree and there is no safety issue, should
things ever change | would happily pay to have them back on.

| could run my minibus fleet under my VOSA licence and wouldn’t have to have any signage, yellow plates
etc. on my vehicles but then | have to obey by a different set of rules like with my 16 seater minibuses.

| understand raising a panel hearing cost your dept. money and | wouldn’t want to do that unnecessarily so
would be happy to have a hearing when there is one scheduled for something else to keep cost to a
minimum.

I'll await your reply on how to proceed with this.
Regards

Jason Taylor

From: John Gilbraith [mailto:john.gilbraith@west-norfolk.gcsx.gov.uk]
Sent: 09 June 2017 12:13

To: JTaylor <jtaylor@barryscars.co.uk>

Cc: Marie Malt <marie.malt@west-norfolk.gcsx.gov.uk>

Subject: FW: Oval Plates *OFFICIAL - *

This document and any attachments carry a security classification of: OFFICIAL -

Hello Jason,
Marie has passed me your email for me to respond.

In the same way that advertising was allowed on the back windows of some of your vehicles a Panel can
waive the requirements of licensing conditions. Any request would be considered on its own merits and in
relation to the previous request | would like to state that the other operator doesn’t have a blanket
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jgilbraith
Text Box
Appendix 1 to
Report to Panel of Licensing & Appeals Board
Re: Barry's Cars & Minibuses Limited
Dated 2nd November 2017



authorisation for all his vehicles as the exemption only applies to one vehicle. If it assists, the following is
an extract from the decision notice which gives reasons why the Panel allowed this in exception
circumstances:

“In particular the Panel notes that the licensed vehicle is the first all-electric vehicle licensed in West Norfolk
and is being promoted as a luxury executive vehicle that does not damage the environment. Balanced
against that, the Panel is conscious of the public safety reasons for imposing the signage requirements on
private hire vehicles. The Panel does not believe that conditions imposed as a matter of policy should restrict
the use and development of innovative technology for 'special event' and other use at the higher end of the
private hire market. The Panel is also supportive of the specific contribution the licensed vehicle makes to the
reduction of pollution in the Borough. Taking into account the exceptional nature of the licensed vehicle, the
overestimation of private hire use submitted in the application and the stated intention of the applicant to
convert to a special event licence as and when such use becomes viable and sustainable, the Panel GRANTS
the applicant's request for an exemption from the Council's conditions in relation to private hire signage”.

Should you wish to submit a case to be exempt under exceptional circumstances we would be happy to
receive it. Panel hearings have a cost implication which has to be met by licence fees. Should we refer
such a request to Panel then this would only be done if the Panel were siting for another reason.

Hope this helps

John Gilbraith

Licensing Manager

Environmental Health - Licensing

Borough Council of King's Lynn & West Norfolk
King's Court

Chapel Street

King's Lynn

Norfolk

PE30 1EX

@ (01553) 616200

P< _john.gilbraith@west-norfolk.gcsx.gov.uk
www.west-norfolk.gov.uk

b% It takes 24 trees to produce 1 ton of office paper!
Think... is it really necessary to print this email

From: Marie Malt
Sent: 09 June 2017 09:22
To: John Gilbraith
Subject: FW: Oval Plates

From: JTaylor [mailto:jtaylor@barryscars.co.uk]
Sent: 08 June 2017 16:40

To: Marie Malt

Subject: Oval Plates

Good Afternoon Marie

Is it possible for me to make an application to go to panel to request that we can have the oval plates
removed from our vehicles.

| believe another operator has been granted this on whatever grounds he has applied for but has been
granted not to have them.



| wish to have them removed on the grounds that we don’t do any taxi or private hire work with the
general public and is misleading for the general public thinking we do as we have them fitted on our
vehicles.

Could you please let me know what the next steps are so that | can take this matter further please.

Kind regards,

Jason Taylor
Director

Email: jtaylor@barryscars.co.uk

Direct Dial: 07825 712 800

BARRY’S CARS & MINIBUSES LTD

enquiries@barryscars.co.uk www.barryscars.co.uk

01553 84 40 80 01553 77 77 33
Archdale Barn, 14 Back Lane, West Winch, King's Lynn Norfolk, PE33 OLF.
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